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COUPANYLlD

Bockground lo our Business

London Forfoifinq Componv
LFC was established in 1984 and we specialise in
the provision of forfaiting and other trade related
finance products. Our product range continues to
broaden and evolve but these products remain the
nucleus of whatwe do today.

LFC's success is built upon our close working
relationships with clients, understanding their trade
financing requirements and our proven reputation
for providing fast, efficient, tailor-made solutions
focusing primarily on emerging market
counterparty and country risks.

We endeavour to provide excellence in whatever we
do; constantly striving to anticipate the rapidly
changing needs of the market with the goal of
maintaining our position as a leader in the global
forfaiting market.

Our high quality of service is widely acclaimed and
LFC regularly receives industry awards. We believe
that such awards from our customers and peer
group alike are an important acknowledgement of
the quality of the service we provide to our clients.

The extensive experience ofour team of forfaiting
professionals, with backgrounds in both banking
and industry sectors, coupled with the LFC global
network of offices, assures our clients of the highest
level of service and ability to structure financing
solutions.

Whotis Forfoilinq?
Our core product is forfaiting which is a simple
method of financing expolts by discounting the
receivables generated from an export contract on a
"Without Recourse" basis. Forfaiting has however
evolved into a much broader financing technique
used to finance virtually any form ofassignable
and/or transferrable negotiable instrument. LFC
also provides finance through loan facilities.
LFC finances a wide range of imported and exported
goods and services including, Commodities,
Technology, Consumer & Capital Equipment and
even Turn Key Projects. Credit periods range from
60 days up to 10 years.

LFC's counterparties include private and publicly
listed companies, banks and government
authorities.

Trod'rfi onol Forfollins
Traditional forfaiting transactions are often
evidenced by documentation bearing the
unconditional, irrevocable and freely transferable
guarantee or aval of an acceptable bank in the
obligor/borrower's country. However, LFC can also
consider corporate risk or government debt
obligations, without additional bank security.

Typical characteristics of a traditional forfaiting
transaction are:
r Amounts between USD 100,000 and USD

50,000,000, although larger transactions are
also considered

o All major currencies
o 700o/o financing "without recourse" to the

seller of the obligation.
r Fixed or Floating rate
. Payment may be guaranteed by the importer's

Bank or a Sovereign entity or other

Benefits of Trodilionol Forfollinq
Using forfaiting, an exporter has the ability to offer
extended payment terms which will improve the
chances ofthem winning an export contract.

Most exporters prefer to receive cash shortly after
shipment, without exposing themselves to the risks
and costs associated with providing financing to
their overseas clients. Forfaiting allows the exporter
to remove the non-payment risk of concluding an
export contract encompassing extended payment
terms.

By using forfaiting techniques, LFC assists clients
selling cross-border to mitigate a range of risks
including commercial, political, transfer, interest
and exchange risks.

Fofoilinq Asseh
LFC maintains a portfolio of Forfaiting Assets,
evidenced by a variety of debt instruments
including Bills of Exchange, Promissory Notes,
Letters of Credit and trade or project related
Syndicated and Bi-lateral Loan (Financing)
Agreements.
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Slrolegic Reporl

Principle octivities
London Forfaiting Company Limited ("LFC'] and its subsidiaries (collectively known as "Group"J provides
international trade and other financial services with particular focus on forfaiting and loans. LFC's activities include
the purchasing and trading of bills of exchange, promissory notes, loans, deferred payment letters of credit and the
provision of other financial facilities to companies and banks. LFC operates in a global market and has an
international network of offices supporting its principle activity. The background to these business activities is given
on page 1.

Results & Performonce
LFC reported a significant increase in its profit before tax for 2018 to USD 15,251,328 (20L7: USD 8,482,868). This
represents a80o/o increase from the previous year and is the record year for LFC since being acquired by FIMBank in
2003. Profitability increased due to higher trading income and recoveries on previously non-performing loans.
Whilst there was an increase in administrative expenses and net financing expenses, LFC's net profit after tax for the
year attributable to equity holders of the company was USD 13,845,772 (2077: USD 8,333,199).

For the year under review the environment in which LFC operates was challenging. During the first half of 2018
growth in LFC's forfaiting assets held for trading was constrained due to capital constraints at the parent FIMBank
plc. However, this was resolved by a capital injection in the parent during Q2 2018, after which LFC's forfaiting
assets held for trading started to groq ending the year at USD 347,284,967.

Increased political uncertainty in Turkey, one of LFC's main markets, affected the fair valuation of our forfaiting
assets held for trading during the year. Whilst the situation in Turkey is now improving, it had a negative effect upon
our Turkish asset valuations and business volumes for the year under review. The economic environment for
emerging market borrowers remained challenging due to the volatility in the price of commodities and increasing
USD interest rates. Nevertheless LFC was able to capitalise upon the opportunities this volatility created.
Most significantly, LFC was able to negotiate the recovery of a long outstanding non-performing loan during the
second half of 2018, recoveringthe facevalue of this assetin full.

The combination of these factors helped LFC deliver in2078,its highest level of profitability since FIMBank's
acquisition of the Group.

New occountinq sfondords
There were new international financial reporting standards effective this year, IFRSS and IFRS15. Under IAS18
certain fees were treated as syndication fees and deferred on the balance sheet. Upon transition to IFRS1.5 and
IFRS9, analysis performed on the nature ofthese fees found that under the new accounting standards LFC should
recognise all or part of a structuring fee as revenue under IFRS 15 only if the fair value of the Ioan is determined
using data from observable markets. As LFC's forfaiting portfolio held for trading is fair valued using non-observable
inputs, these cash flows should be accounted for under IFRSS rather than IFRS15. This led to a transitional
adjustment under IFRS9 ofdeferred revenue from trade and other payables to forfaiting assets held for trading. This
represents a balance sheet re-classification only. IFRS9 does not require a restatement ofprior periods in these
circumstances. The opening balance sheet of this change would have been a reduction of USD 3,833,732 to the
forfaiting asset held for trading as at 31 December 2017 from USD 252,509,744 tollSD 248,675,472 on 1 January
2018. Furthermore, many items on the Income statement were reclassified after the adoption of the above
standards.

Turnover ond lroding income
LFC's turnover (defined as the total value of forfaiting assets sold and matured) decreased by 44o/o from
USD 610,208,822 in2017 to USD 343,307,478 in 2018. Part of the reason for this drop in turnover is explained
above. Nevertheless, this did not adversely impact our profitability for the year. Whilst forfaiting assets held for
trading at the year-end increased 38o/o to USD 347 ,284,967 (2017: USD 2 52,509,144), this increase occurred during
thesecondhalf of 20lS.Forfaitingyieldthenincreasedby3Lo/otoUSD 18,522,943 fromUSD 14,146,922in201.7,as
a reflection of the increasing portfolio and interest rates.
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Slrolegic Reporl (continued)

Turnover ond trqdinq income (continued)
The fair value gain of forfaiting assets held for trading and derivative financial instruments was significantly higher
at USD 10,953,809 profit in 2018 compared to USD 50,022loss in 2017. Although this was a result of reclassiffing
components from net fees and commissions income in 2018, as explained above, there was nevertheless a significant
year on year increase. This was due to the increase in the fair valuation of a non-performing loan in the months
preceding settlement and a higher contributions from fair value trading.

Net fees and commission income decreased from USD 7,\33,037 in20l7 to USD 484,884 in 2018, which following
from the above was as a result of reclassifying components of net fees and commissions income to fair value.

Notwithstanding the reclassification, due to improved performance of the proex scheme financing in Brazil and
lower credit insurance costs, net fees and commissions income contributed towards a 4Lo/oyear on year increase in
Trading Income.

Net finoncing expense
LFC's parenl FIMBank plc. continued to provide funding, through the bank overdraft to help support funding ofthe
forfaiting portfolio held for trading. The bank overdraft increased by \67o/o from USD 48,875,237 in20t7 to
USD 130,287,629 in 2018, largely due to LFC prepaying a USD 65m repo loan facility from Burgan Bank S.A.K.
Notwithstanding this prepayment LFC's increased efforts to expand its other funding activities resulted in a net
decrease of only \5o/oin our external funding, which ended the year at USD t13,202,873 in 201.8 from
USD 133,650 ,296 in2077.

Adminislrolive expenses
LFC continually monitors its administrative expenses, which were2To/o higher for the year at USD 8,628,630
compared to USD 6,339,039 in20L7 largely due to performance costs.

Deferred Tox Asset
In view of the Company's continued improving profitability, the Directors again reviewed the value of the deferred
tax asset against future income projections. Following this review, the Directors consider the deferred tax asset at
USD 6,689,406, as at 31 December 2018 as appropriate and reasonable. During the year, USD 570,000 ofthe
deferred tax asset was consumed as a result of the increased profitability of the Company.

Finonciol risk monoqemenl
The financial risk management objectives and policies and exposures to various risks, including market risk,
liquidity risk, credit risk and operational risk (which include compliance and reputational riskJ are covered in note
18 of the financial statements.

Kev Performonce lndicofors
Throughout the year, the Directors monitor the company's Key Performance Indicators (KPI's). Financial KPI's
including those relating to Turnover (defined as total value of forfaiting assets held for trading sold and matured
during the year), Trading Income, Portfolio of Forfaiting Assets Held for Trading and Funding are addressed above.

An essential element in maintaining LFC's growth and market leading position is the retention of key personnel and
the provision ofappropriate training. Consequently, staffturnover is also considered to be a key Non-Financial KPI
and is monitored closely by Directors. During 20L8, LFC had three joiners and two leavers from a total staff count of
39 (2017: seven joiners and six leavers from a total staff count of 38).

During 201.8, LFC was once again acknowledged as the leading forfaiting company, being awarded the "Best
Alternative Trade Finance Provider" award from GTR magazine.
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Slrolegic Reporl (conlinued)

Brexit, kev risks. uncertoinlies ond Outlook
Key risks to the business in the coming year continue to be the volatility in the price of commodities, coupled with
credit and interest rate risk exposure of the forfaiting assets held for trading in the emerging markets. Whilst the US-
Sino relationship continues to be strained, the effect of this on LFC would be limited. Although, LFC is exposed to US

exports to Latam countries and Chinese exports to Sub-Saharan Africa, LFC has very little exposure to trade flows
directly to and from the United States and China.

The impact of Brexit on LFC's UK activities has been reviewed and is considered to have a minimal impact upon the
activities and performance of the Company. We believe that LFC's appetite for diverse risks across different business
sectors and geographies, coupled with our global footprint places LFC in a strong position to manage any identifiable
risks associated with Britain withdrawing from the EU. LFC's exposure is mainly to emerging markets which will
have a limited impact from Brexit. Notwithstanding a portion of our forfaiting assets held for trading are Euro
denominated, the counterparties are not based in the EU and the recoverability ofthese exposures are likely to be
unaffected by Brexit. Key personnel at LFC will not be affected. LFC's funding is sourced from EU and non-EU
entities, as well as it's own equity; other than loans from our parent, FIMBank plc, LFC does not place a reliance on
EU sourced funding. We do not currently believe the business model will have to change to accommodate Brexit.

LFC continually source remunerative transactions, notwithstanding difficult market conditions. The forfaiting
portfolio held for trading is robust and its risks continually monitored. LFC has considerable experience in managing
exposures and in the close monitoring of transactions, to ensure performance as well as the use of various
techniques to mitigate risks. Where LFC's business leads to risks relating to interest rate movements, we use
established hedging techniques and derivatives to minimise this exposure. Funding is secured from our own capital,
our ability to attract external funding, and financing we receive from our immediate parent, related parties and our
ultimate owners, Kuwait Projects Company Holding K.S.C.P. (KIPC0).

Goino concern
The Group is expected to continue to generate positive cash flows and profits on its own account for the foreseeable
future. In view of the current market conditions, the directors have considered existing and future funding lines, as
well as the tradability of the forfaiting assets held for trading and are satisfied about the Group and Company's
ability to meet obligations as they fall due. The directors confirm the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
appropriate because there are no material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt about the ability of the company to continue as a going concern. Both the Company financial statements and
the Group financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Directors ond Stoff
We take this opportunity to thank our management and staff for their endeavours through the year and their
contribution toward these excellent results. We also thank our shareholders for their continued support and
commitment to LFC's business activities.

Grech

4
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Reporl of lhe Direclors

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited Group and Company financial statements for the
year ended 3 L December 201.8.

Resulls qnd dividends
LFC's profit after tax for the year 2078 was USD 1.3,845,772 (201,7: USD 8,333,199). The Directors approved the
payment of a scrip dividend of USD 10,000,000 during the year (20L7: cash dividend of USD 4,448,401).The scrip
dividend was paid from the issue of 10,000,000 bonus shares at USD 1 per share.

Key Performonce lndicolors
The company's Key Performance Indicators IKPI'sJ are detailed on page 3

Poliiicql contribulions
The Group and Company made no political contributions in 2018, (2017: nil)

Direclors
The directors who held office during the year were as follows:

Chairman/ Director - fohn Carmel Grech
Director - Mohamed Fekih Ahmed
Director - Majed Essa Al-Ajeel
Director - Robert Frost

None of the Directors who held office at the end of the financial year had any disclosable interest in the shares of the
company. According to the register of directors' interests, no right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of the
company were granted to any of the directors or their immediate families, or exercised by them, during the financial
year.

The Directors benefited from qualifying third party indemnity provisions during the year.

Disclosure of informolion to oudilor
The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors' report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor's is unaware; and each director has
taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

Auditor
Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act2006, the auditors will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG LLP
will therefore continue in office.

Approvol
By order ofthe Board.

Grech
Director

7 February 2019
11 lronmonger Lane
London ECzV BEY
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Slolemenl of direclors' responsibililies in respect of lhe Slrolegic Report ond lhe
Direclors' Report ond lhe finonciol stolemenls

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Repor! the Directors' Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law they have elected to prepare both the group and the parent company financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (lFRSs as adopted by the EU) and
applicable law.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period. In
preparing each ofthe group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

r make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable;

. state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;

. assess the group and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern; and

. use the going concern basis ofaccounting unless they either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
parent company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent
company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation offinancial statements
that are free from material misstatemen! whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking
such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets ofthe group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities.

6



lndependenl Audilor's Report to lhe Members of London
Forfoiling Compony limiled

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of London Forfaiting Company Limited ("the company") for the year ended
31 December 2018 which comprise the Group and parent Company and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 3.

In our opinion:

o the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as
at 31" December, 2018 and ofthe group's pfofit for the year then ended;

r the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (lFRSs as adopted by the EU);

o the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the EU and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

o the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("lSAs (UK)'l and applicable
law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are
independent of the group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Other mattersr The impact of uncertainties due to Britain exiting the European Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit ofthe financial statements. All
audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors, such as recoverability of deferred
tax assets, fair valuation offinancial instruments and related disclosures and the appropriateness ofthe going concern
basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic
environment and the group's future prospects and performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK and at the date of this report its effects are subject to
unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We applied a
standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the group's future prospects and
performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible future
implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
group or the company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company's
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of
approval ofthe financial statements ("the going concern period").

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis
for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. In our evaluation of the directors'
conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the group's business model, including the impact of Brexi! and
analysed how those risks might affect the group and company's financial resources or ability to continue operations
over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that
are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to a
material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the group or the company will continue in
operation.
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lndependenl Audilor's Report to lhe Members of London

Forfoiling Compony limiled (conlinued)

Strategic report and directors' report

The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors' report. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors' report and, in doing so, consider whether, based
on our financial statements audit worh the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

o w€ have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors' report;

o in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements; and

o in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

r adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

o the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

r certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

o the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption from the requirement to
prepare a strategic report.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors' responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 6, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatemen! whether due
to fraud or error; assessing the group and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis ofaccounting unless they either intend
to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level ofassurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthe financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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lndependenl Audilor's Report lo lhe Members of London

Forfoiling Compony limiled (conlinued)

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we.might state to the company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's
members, as a body, for our audit worh for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Sarah Ward (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, StatutoryAuditor
Chartered Accountants
L5 Canada Square
London
E14 5GL
9 February,2019
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lncome slqlemenls

For theyear ended 3 1 Deemben 2018
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Slcilemenls of comprehensfoe income

Forlheyear ended 3 1 Iremrben 2018
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COMPANVITD

Slotemenls of finqnciol posilion

Asat31 December20lB

Note

9

10

1.1.

15

Group
201:8
USD

lt2A74

2017
USD

9eA5o

7.259.406

Company
2018
USD

103,554 92,666
40,894

7,259A06

20L7
USD

Assets

Plantand equipment
Investment in subsidiaries
Deferred taxasseb

Non-cun'entasseb
Forhitingassets - held fortrading
Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Currentassets
Totalasseb

Liabilities
Bankoverdraft
Loans andborrowings
Trade and other payables

Totalliabilities

Equity
Share capital
Retained earnings

Total equityattributable to ovvners ofthe Company

Total equity and liabilities

6,689,N6 6,689406
6,801"880 7.358.855 6,792,960 7,392966

1B

T2

13

13

14

16

347,2U,967
2,613,725

228,068

252,509,1,44

4400,074
6,367,849

347,2M,967
2,549,999

187,941

252,509,IM
4,333,325

6,326A06
350.f,26.760 263.277.067 350,022,907 263,168,875

356,928,@0 270,635,923 356,8t5,867 270,561,841,

130,287,629
LL3,202,873
2'.,M5,945

48,875,237

133,650,296

9,963.969

L30,287,629
LL3,202,873
21,3U,977

48,875,237

L33,650,296
9,897515

2&,936147 192.489.502 2&,875,479 192,423,048

50,000,000
4'.,992,193

40 000,000
38.1.46.421

50,000,000
41,940,388

40000,000
38,138,793

91,992,L93 78,1,46,421 91,940,388 78,138,793
356.928.&O 270,635,923 356,815,867 270,561.,84L

The notes on pages 1.5 to 45 are an integral part ofthese financial statemenB.

Thesefinancial statements wereapprovedbydreboard ofdirectors on 7 February2019 andweresigned on ib behalfby:

Grech
rector

\

Registered Nu mber 17 33 47 0
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Slolemenls of chonges in equity

Group

Balance at 1 fanuary 2017

Total mmprehensive income fortheyear

Transactions widr owners of the company
Cashdividendpaid

Balance at 31 December 2017

Balaneat1fanuary2018

Total comprehensive inome for the year

Ttsansactionswith ovyners oflhe company

Bonus sharrs lssued ftom rctained earnings

Balane at 3 1 December 2018

Company

Balance at 1" fanuary 2017

Total comprehensive income forthe year

Transactiors with owners ofthe company
Cashdividendpaid
Balance at 31 D enmlcrur 20L7

Balaneatlfanuary2OlS

Total comprehensive inome for the year

Transactionswith ovyners oftheaompany

Bonus sharcs issued ftom reAined earnings

Balane at 31 December 2018

SlnreCapital

USD

40,000,000

Retained
earnings

USD

34,267,623

8,333,199

Total
equity

USD

74,261,623

8,333,r99

(4,448,4Ot)

,10,000,000 38,746427 7B,LMAZ7

,+0,000,000

10,000,000

38,rMAzt

13M5,772

78,t46,421

l.sMs;772

50,000.000 91992,193

ShareCapital

USD

,10,000,000

Retained
earnings

USD

34,251,672

8,335582

Toal
equity

USD

74,251,6t2

9335582

(4,4./8.fr7)
,10,000,000 38,L38,793 78,738,793

,tO,000,000

10,000,000

38,138;793

13901,595

78,138J93

13801,595

50,000,000 4'.94/J.38[J 91,940F88

The notes on pages L5 to 45 are an integral part ofthese financial sbatemenb.

l3



COMPANY LTD

Slolemenls of cqsh llows

For the year ended 3 1 December 2018

Cash fl orus ft om operating activities
Proceeds from sale /mahrity of forhiting assets held for
trading
Purchase of forfaiting asseb held fortrading
Interest and commissions receipts
Interest and commissions payments

Payment to employees and suppliers

Cash fouffiow)/ inflow before changes in operating
asses/iabilities

(lncrease) / decrease in operating asseb:
Amountsduefromparent
Prepayments, accrued income and other debtors
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Amounb dueto parent
Otrerliabilities
Net cash finm/ (used inJ operating activities before income
tax
Taxpaid
Netcash used in operatingactivities

Cash florars fiom investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal ofplantand equipment
Repayment from subsidiaries

Net cash from inveSing activities

Cash flor,us ftrm financingactivities
Proceeds from the iszue of promissory notes
Repayment of issued promissory notes
Proceeds Iiom money market loan agreemenb entercd
Repayment of money market loan agreements
Proceeds from repo financing agreements entered
Repayment of repo financing agreements
Repayment of bank overdraft
Dividendspaid
Net cash fiom financing activities

Net (decreaseJ/ increase in cash and cash equivalenb
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalenb at 3 1 December

The notes on pages 15 to 45 are an integral part ofthese financial statements.

363,253178 624,87,174 363,253A78 624,M7,174

Note

(433,526,755)
7,052,3t6

(8,348,495)

t6,386,500)

20t7
USD

(483,501,455J (433,5267 55)
?190,390 7,OSL62O

(8,285,89n (9,656,297)
(590L,923) (545L,tt6',l

Group
20L8
USD

Company
2014
USD

20t7
USD

(43,501,455)
9,353,565

(9,577,768)
(4987,679)

(77,955956) 135988,289 C78329p7O) 735,834,437

(+6eL)
1,791,039

t4839atJE.

ttso6;779

(227,85n

86,637
(3,740,732)

142,502

(3,705,262)

(t4e,66e)

(4,691)
1,788,O19

148392tJ8

11,508841

(227,85n

86,637
(3,729,274)

L42,502

(3,702,474)

(149,669)

(ffi,677,O341 732,L33,358 (67,04€,086) 731,,982,294

(6s,731)- ryffi @1,6841- Gqooo1

- - 386,321 138,923
(65,73L1 [20,197) 306,637 119,799

1'27fi8,66
(109,815,691)

83;7il,065
(s7,t5628)

(65,000,000)
81fr12,392

76,743,587 !27fr8u'6
Q9,7 15,7 95) (109,81$691)

13996,642 83,79,065
- (s7,L5628)

76,1.43,581

Qe,71s,7es)
73,996,642

(L3,500,000)

(769l0s,ee)
(4,MB, OL)

(65,000,000)

81fri23e2
(13,s00,000)

(1.68,405,9&)
(4,4.r'8'107)

60,6029U (125929,%n 6O,6029fJ4 (125,929,%n

(6,139,781)
6,367,M9

6,783,224

L84,625

(6,138/6,5)
6,326fi6

6,171,556

154,850

13 228,068 6,367,M9 187,941 6,326A06

t4



COMPNY LTD

Notes lo lhe finonciql stolemenls

1. Repoding enlily
London Forfaiting Company Limited (the "Company") is a company domiciled in the United Kingdom. The address of
the Company's registered office is 11 Ironmonger Lane, London EC2V BEY. The financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018 comprises the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
"Group" and individually as "Group entities"). The Group is primarily involved in forfaiting, a further background to
our business is shown on page 1.

2. Bosbcf preporolion
The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future developmen! performance and
position are set out in the Strategic Reporb on pages 2to 4.
Both the company financial statements and the Group financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

(o) Slotemenl of complhrrce
Both the parent company financial statements and the Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (lFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) and adopted by the EU.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 February 2019.

(b) Bosis cf meqsurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items in the
statements of financial position:

forfaiting assets held for trading are measured at fair value; and;
derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value

(c) Func-lftcnol ond presenlqlion curency
These financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (USDJ, which is the Company's functional currency

(O Use of eslimqles ond judgernenh
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in notes 11 and 18.
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COMPANT LTD

Noles lo lhe finonciol slqlemenls (conlinued)

3. Signficonl occounling policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities.

(o) Bosb cf consolHqli,on

fi)Subsidiodes
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

(b) Foreign cunency
(i) Foreig n c unency fo nsoc{ions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies ofGroup entities at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Non- monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Foreign exchange differences arising on
translation are recognised in the income statement.

(D Foreign operolions
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to US Dollars at exchange rates at the reporting date.
The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to the US Dollar at the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions.

(c) Forfoiling ossets held for troding
Forfaiting assets held for trading comprising bills of exchange, promissory notes and transferable trade related
loans are financial instruments held for trading and are stated at fair value with any resulting gain or loss
recognised in the income statement. Fair value is calculated using the credit worthiness, tenor, amount and
interest rates on each asset at the reporting date and determining whether or not it is higher or lower than the
book value, with the resulting gain or loss taken to the income statement; this is further explained in Note 17.
Having assessed the business model requirements under IFRS9, this forfaiting assets portfolio was classified as
held for trading. This means that the instruments will be held at Fair Value through Profit and Loss. This is the
same treatment as under IAS39.

(d) Daivolive finonciql inshurnenls
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate risks arising from operational
activities, however, the Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative
financial instruments are stated at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately to the income statements. The fair value of interest rate future contracts is the estimated amount that
the Group would receive or pay to terminate the contract at the reporting date, taking into account current interest
rates.

(e) Forfoirfing qssetswdfe off
The Group writes off a forfaiting asset held for trading when it has been unequivocally determined that the asset is
uncollectible. This determination is reached after considering information such as the occurrence of significant
changes in the borrower/ guarantor's financial position such that the borrower/ guarantor can no longer pay the
obligation that proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure, or future
recoverability efforts are deemed unfeasible.
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Noles lo lhe finonciol stolemenh (conlinued)

3. SQnfficonl occounling policies (conlinued)
(f) Plontond equipmenl
(i) Recognifion ond meosuremenl
Items of plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe asset. The cost ofself-
constructed assets includes the cost ofmaterials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing
the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located and capitalised borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to
the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.
When parts of an item of plant or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of plant and equipment.
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of plant and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of the item of property and equipment, and are recognised as other operating
expenses in profit or loss.

(D Subsequenl costs
The cost of replacing a component of an item of plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the component will flow to the Group and its cost
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-
day servicing of plant and equipment are recognised in the income statement as incurred.

(iii) Degeciolion
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an
item of plant and equipment since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and their useful lives. The estimated useful Iives are as follows:

o leaseholdimprovement
o fixures,fitingsandequipment
o motorvehicles

5years
4years
4years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

(g) lnveslmenls in subsidiqfes
Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost in accordance with the requirement of IAS 27 and tested for
impairment annually.

(h) Trode qnd olherreceivqbles
These financial assets meet the criteria of amortised cost under IFRS9, with solely payment of principal and interest
being receivable. As such these instruments are stated at amortised cost under IFRS9. Note this does not lead to a
difference in treatment from IAS39. Expected Credit Losses are expected as per the staging criteria set out in
accounting policy j.

0 Cqsh qnd cosh equivolenls
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
form an integral part of the Group's and Company's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose only of the statement of cash flows. These financial assets meet the criteria of amortised
cost under IFRS9, with solely payment of principal and interest being receivable. As such these instruments are
stated at amortised cost under IFRS9. Note this does not lead to a difference in treatment from IAS39. Expected
Credit Losses are expected as per the staging criteria set out in accounting policy j.
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COMPANTLTI'

Noles lo lhe finqnciol slolemenls (conlinued)

3. Signfficont occounling pollcies (conlinued)

0lmpoiment
IFRS9 replaces the "incurred loss" model in IAS 39 with an expected credit loss [ECL) model. The new impairment
model applies to all financial assets and commitments measured at amortised cost and debt investments. Under IFRSS
credit losses are recognised earlier than under IAS 39 as the ECL model uses forward looking information which
replaces an incurred loss model. The financial assets held at amortised costs consists oftrade and other receivables
and cash and cash equivalents.

The expected credit loss model introduces a three-stage approach to impairment as follows:
Stage 1 - the recognition of 12 month expected credit losses (ECL), that is the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
from default events that are expected within 12 months of the reporting date, if credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition;

Stage 2 - lifetime expected credit losses for financial instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition; and

Stage 3 - lifetime expected credit losses for financial instruments which are credit impaired

The measurement of ECL is calculated using three main components: (i) probability of default (PD (iD loss given default
(LGD) and (iii) the exposure at default (EAD).

The Company assesses when a significant increase in credit risk has occurred based on quantitative and qualitative
assessments. Accounts that are 90 calendar days or more past due. The 90 days past due criteria is a backstop rather
than a primary driver of moving exposures into Stage 2.

As required by IFRS 9 the company applied IFRS 9 retrospectively by adjusting the opening balance sheet at the date
of initial application, and comparative periods have not been restated.

(k) I nlerest- beodng borowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and
redemption value being recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings on an effective
interest basis.

(l) Employeebenefils
The Group contributes towards defined contribution plans. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred.

(m) Provtsions
A provision is recognised if, as a result ofa past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

(n) Trode ond olher pqyqbles
Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost.
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COMPNLTD

Noles to the finonciolstolements (conlinued)

3. tiignficont occounling policies (conlinued)
(o) Troding inconre
Trading income is analysed in note 4 to the financial statements. This represents the net amount earned from
forfaiting yield and fair value adjustments and net fees and commissions income.

Forfaiting yield is the realised and accrued interest earned from forfaiting assets held for trading up to sale or
maturity.

The Group earns fees and commissions income from the provision of financial services to its customers. These
fees are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation of the contract with the customer.
The fees and commissions income include fees for business introductions, proex financing, whilst the fees and
commissions expense include nostro maintenance fees and fees payable for insurance.

The Group has entered into future contracts to hedge its interest rate exposure. Any gains and losses made under
these derivative financial instruments are included within trading income. This is an economic hedge and LFC has
not applied hedge accounting requirements.

As at the reporting date the Group has recognised the fair value ofits forfaiting assets held for trading and
derivative financial instruments. Fair value of forfaiting assets held for trading is calculated using the credit
worthiness, amount, tenor and interest rates on each asset at the reporting date and determining whether or not
it is higher or lower than the book value, with the resulting profit or loss taken to the income statement.

(p) E<penses
(i) Operoling leqse pofnenh

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease. Lease initiatives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the total lease
expense.

(ii) Netfinoncecosb
Net finance costs comprise interest payable and foreign exchange gains and losses.
Interest income and interest payable is recognised in the income statement as it accrues, using the effective interest
method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
the amortised cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired assets, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrumen!
but not ECL. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is
calculates using the estimated future cash flows including ECL.

The calculation ofthe effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that are
an integral part ofthe effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.

(q) Incomelox
Income tax on the profit or Ioss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect ofprevious
years.
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Noles lo lhe finonciol stolemenls (conlinued)

3. Slgnficont occounling polichs (conlinued)
(q) lncome to< (conlinued)
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary difference, to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

(r) Segment Repoding
The Group is not required to adopt IFRS 8 Operating Segment reporting as the Group is not listed. All trading income
and profits before taxation are derived from the Group's sole activity ofinternational trade finance focusing on
forfaiting and loans. As trading is carried out in international markets, it is not viewed to be contained by
geographical boundaries. Furthermore, the forfaiting assets held for trading are diverse and as a consequence
segmenting into specific countries or regions would not be meaningful over time as there is no comparability.

(s) Sole qnd repurchose ogreernenls
When forfaiting assets held for trading are sold subject to a commitment to repurchase them at a predetermined
price (repos), they remain on the balance sheet as, in substance, these transactions are in the nature ofsecured
borrowings. As a result ofthese transactions, the Company is unable to use, sell or pledge the transferred assets for
the duration of the transaction. Similarly, forfaiting assets held for trading purchased under commitments to sell
('reverse repos'J are not recognised on the balance sheet.

(t) lnter-group finqnchl inslruments
Where the Group and/or Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness ofother
companies within its group, the Group and/ or Company considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts
for them as such. In this respec! the Group/ Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such
time as it becomes probable that the company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.

As at 31 December 2018, there are no intercompany guarantees, (20L7: nil)

(u) Forfoifing qssel insurqnce
LFC takes out third party insurance against certain loans. The costs ofthese policies are taken into the fair value ofthe
instruments. Any potential income associated to the policy is not recognised until it is virtually certain that the policy
will pay out to LFC
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COMPANYLTI'

Noles lo lhe finonciol stotemenh (conlinued)

3. SQnfficont occounling polic'les (conlinued)
(v) New slondorcls ond inleprelolircns odopted
A number of new standards have been effective for annual periods beginning after 1 fanuary 2018. The impact of
these new standards are detailed below:

IFRS 9

IFRS 9 contains a new classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business model
in which assets are managed and their cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The standard eliminates the existing IAS 39 categories of held to
maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the
host is a financial asset in the scope ofthe standard are never bifurcated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as
a whole is assessed for classification.

Following the business model test, the Group's forfaiting assets are categorised as held for trading. Consequently
these are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) which is the same basis of
classification and measurement as was applied under IAS 39. The Group's other financial assets, trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost which is subject to impairment as per
policy j.

The Group's financial liabilities include a bank overdraft, external borrowings and trade and other payables, all of
which have been measured at amortised cost.

The following table and accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and
the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Company's and Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities as at 1 January 2018

The effect of adopting IFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial assets at 1 January 20L8 relate solely to the new
impairment requirements.

As required by IFRS 9 the company applied IFRS 9 retrospectively by adjusting the opening balance sheet at the date
of initial application, and comparative periods have not been restated. The only adjustment identified was a
restatement between balance sheet captions (representing cashflows previously treated as IASlB fee deferrals being
treated as part ofasset fair value) and there has been no impact on capital.

Original
classifications

under IAS 39

New
classiftcation
under IFRS 9

Original
carrying

amount under
IAS 39

New carrying
amount under

IFRS 9

Group

Financial assets USD USD
Forfaiting assets - held for trading

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Held-for-
trading
Loans and
Receivables
Loans and
Receivables

252,509,1,44

4,400,074

6,367,849

248,675,412

4,400,074

6,367,849

FVTPL

Amortised Cost

Amortised Cost

Total financial assets 277 o67 5

Financial liabilities
Bank overdraft
Loans and borrowings

Amortised Cost
Amortised Cost
Amortised Cost

(48,875,237)
(1.33,650,296)

(48,875,237)
(133,650,296)

Amortised Cost
Amortised Cost
Amortised Costes 13 3Trade and other 963,

Total financial liabilities 9
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Notes lo lhe finqnciol stolements (conlinued)

3. SQnfficont occounling policies (conlinued)
(v) Newslondords ond intepretolions odopled (conlinued)

Carrying value of financial assets held at amortised cost remained the same under IAS39 and IFRS9 as no ECL was
identified in respect of these assets upon transition

The Group also makes certain financial guarantees to customers, such as letters of credit confirmations,
confirmations of promissory notes or loan credit default swaps. Under IFRS 9 these instruments meet the definition
of Financial Guarantees. These instruments must be measured initially at fair value, which is usually equal to
premiums received (nil on 1 January 2018). Subsequently these instruments are measured at the higher of the
amount of loss allowance or the initial amount recognised less the cumulative amount of income recognised at the
reporting date. As at 1 January 2018 there were no Iosses in respect ofthese contracts. There was no day one ECL
recognised on these contracts.

|FRS t5
The Group had conducted an impact analysis on IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The objective of IFRS 15 is to establish the principles that an entity shall apply to report useful information to users
of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a
contract with a customer. [IFRS 15:1] Application of the standard is mandatory for annual reporting periods starting
from 1 fanuary 2018 onwards. Earlier application is permitted.

The core principle of IFRS l.5 is that an entity will recognise revenue to represent the transfer of promised services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. This core principle is delivered in a five-step model framework: [IFRS 15:lN7]

7. Identiff the contract(s) with a customer
2. Identiff the performance obligations in the contract
3. Determine the transaction price
4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group performed the assessment above and did not identiff any material changes to revenue recognition
requirements. However, there were changes to the classification of revenue in the Income Statements. The impact of
IFRS15 resulted in no prior period restatement or opening adjustment and has no impact on capital.

Original
classifications
under IAS 39

New
classification
under IFRS 9

Original
carrying

amountunder
IAS 39

New carrying
amountunder

IFRS 9

Company

Financial assets USD USD
Forfaiting assets - held for trading

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Held-for-
trading
Loans and
Receivables
Loans and
Receivables

252,509,744

4,333,325

6326,406

FVTPL

Amortised Cost

Amortised Cost

248,675,4r2

4,333,325

6,326,406

Total financial assets 875 2 3 143

Financial Liabilities
Bank overdraft
Loans and borrowings

Amortised Cost
Amortised Cost
Amortised Cost

(48,875,237)
(t33,650,296)

(48,875,237)
(133,650,296)

Amortised Cost
Amortised Cost
Amortised CostTrade and other 897 783

Total financial liabilities 92 1
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Noles lo the finonciol stolemenls (conlinued)

3. liignfficont occounling policies (conlinued)
(w) New slondqrds ond intelpretolions not yel odopled
Ollrerslondords
The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

o IFRS 16 - Leases due to come into effect 1 January 2019. The Group has assessed the potential impact on its
consolidated financial statements but has not yet completed its detailed assessment. IFRS16 introduces a
single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset
representing its right-to-use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. As at 31 December 2018, the Group's future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases amounted to USD 351,853 which the Group estimates it will recognise as
additional lease liabilities.

o IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Tax Treatments.
r Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9).
o Long-term Interests in Associates and foint Ventures (Amendments to IAS 2B).
e Plan Amendment Curtailment or Settlement fAmendments to IAS 19).
o Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 20L5-20L7 Cycle - various standards.
o Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards. IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts.

4. Troding incorne Group

2018
USD

2017
USD

Company

2018 2017
USD USD

Netgain on financial insffuments held forU'ading
Forhitingleld
Fair rraluation of forhiting assets held for trading and
derivative firnncial instrumenb

Fees and commissions income
Fees and commissions s(penses

Staffcost

Wages, salaries and allorannces

Social securitycoss
Persioncosb
Operating lease openses
Auditor?s remuneration:

Audit of these financial statemenB
Amountreceivable by auditors and their associates in respect of
services:

- rcviewofinteriminformation
- auditoffinancialsbatementsofsubsidiaries
- otlerservicesrelatingtotaxation

Other professional fees

Management fees paid to parent
Other administrative expenses

'.:8,522,943 
14,rM922 19,522,943 74,\46922

10Bs3g@ [50,0221 1095390e [50,022)
29,476:752 74,096,900 29476,752 t4,096,900

1285,124
rcu,2.40'l

9,780,268

Q,$M,237)
!,286,124

(2,109,04'31
9,180,268

(3,278,500)

29,961536 21,229,937 28,653833 19998,668

Included within the Company's fees and commissions expense is an amount of USD 1,308,041(201,7: USD 1,231,895)
payable to subsidiaries for marketing services.1n2078, theGrouprefinedits fairrraluationmodel toincludecashflowsassociated
to fees and commissions income and expense

5. Adminlslrolive expenses
Company

2018 20t7
USD USD

4,915,929 3,M6,762
M9,28 4.04,06t
153,M6 737,863

500,675 M5,537

12l,606 92,505 12t606 92505

57,085 74,205 52085 74,205
7,611 8,290 7,611 8,290
2,709 30,666 2,709 30,666

353,433 187,695 357,695 776,547
241,092 (505501) 24'.W2 (505501)
977,LM 836,507 

'J€,8924 
742,989

Group
201:8

USD

5,#9,54f)
stz,oL5
L68,370
638,016

2017
USD

4487,974
M9,633
148,404

59+,667

23
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COMPANY LTI)

Noles lo lhe finonciol slotemenh (conlinued)

5. Adnfnblrqlive expenses (conlinued)
Other pension cost represents contribution payable by the Group to a defined contribution pension scheme.
In the prior year management fees to parent were shown net of fees received for marketing whereas this year the
fees are shown gross in other operating income.

Group Cnmpany
Total number of employees atthe end ofthe year:

- forhiting and loan offi cers
-otherstaff

39 38 33

As at 31 December 2018, there were 4 employees in London ForfaitingAmericas Inc. (2017:5 employees) and 2 in
London Forfaiting do Brasil Ltda. (2077:2 employees).

Diec{on'remunerqlft)n

The total amounB for Directors' remrmeration were as follows:

201720L8 2018
12
2L

2017

T2

19

15

23

15
24

31

Group
2018
USD

4O,000

Company
201:8

USD

4O,00o

2017
USD

49,778

2017
USD

Directors' Remuneration

Company contributions to moneypurchase pension plans
49,778

40,000 49,778 40,000 49,778

The aggregate of emoluments and amounts receivable for the highest paid Director is USD 28,000 (2017: USD
37,7LL). The directors of LFC include employees of other KIPCO group companies whose remuneration is borne by
these companies and similarly, there are employees remunerated by the Company who act as directors of other
companies in the FIMBank group. For those directors not compensated by the Company a portion of their total
compensation has been allocated.

6. Oher operoling incorne
Group

201:8
USD

7M,593

Company
20L8
USD

7M,593
368.32L
(4o8e4)

201:l
USD

738,923

7,I95

20L7
USD

Management fee from the parent
Dividend from subsidiary
(lmpairmentJ/ reversal of impairment on inves'trnent in
subsidiary

746,593 I,O7+02O 746,118

In the prior year management fees from parent for marketing were shown net of administrative expenses whereas
this year the fees are shown gross in other operating income.
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7. Nelfinoncecosls

Intercstincome
Recefiable from zubsidiaries

Otrer
Financialincome

Inter€ste)pense
Payabletoparent
Payable to third parties

Netexchangelosses

Financial openses
Netfinancingexpenses

8.lncomelox

Currenttaxelpense
Currentyear
Non-current

Defenrdta:reryense
Benefit of tax losses recognised

Incometaxexpense

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profitbeforetax

TaxusingtheUKCorporationtaxrateof \9o/o(2017:79.25o/o)
Effecbof;

Expenses/(incomeJ disregarded for tax purposes

Depreciation in excess of capital allowances

Utilisation of tax losses brought forward
Recogdtion of previously unrecogrised bx losses

Incometaxexpense

rc,g.9,602t t6,358,152) (6805,69n [6,365,5131
(682&2711 (o80$062) (6,192,2\n

Group
2018
USD

1,331

2017
USD

70,r21

Company
201:8
USD

635

2017
USD

773,270

26
1,331 70,721 635 173,296

(3839,180)
(29t7A18)

o3pml

(3,495,549)
(2,743,LLg)
(t]9Aw)

(3,839,180)
(2,917A18)

(49,0991

(3A95,549)

Q,743,119)
(126,845)

Gnrup
20LA
USD

2017
USD

Company
20ta
USD

2017
USD

831556 L49,669 e|5,556 t4g,66g

570,000 570,000

1fi5,556 1,49,669 1,,105,556 t49,69

Group
2018
USD

2017
USD

BAB2,868

Company
20t8 20L7
USD USD

!5248,M5 8,485,251.1525'.328

2,897,752 7,632952 2,897,129 1,633A1L

4,462
1.o,ot4

(1,506,672)

7487
12,025

(rfte6,7Be)

4,355
9,651

(1,50$579)

Q7,004)
7,723

(7,464A61)

1,405,556 149,669 
'.fr5,556 

749,669
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9. Plqntqndequiprnent
Group

Cct
Balance at 1 fanuary 2017
Additions
Disposals

Balance at 31 December 2017

Balaneat1fanuary2018
Additions
Dsposals

Balane at 31 Deember 2018

Ilepecidion
Balance at 1 fanuary 2017
Depreciation clurge for tre year
Disposals

Balaneat3l Dren:rbrur2DLT

Balanceat 1fanuary2018
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

Balance at 3 1 December 2018

Carryingamounts
AtLlantnry2077
At31 December2017

At1fanuary2018

At31 December2018

727959 137,72t 865680
3L#1 37A+t

[20,006) (42,6M) (62,650)

739,394 95,077 834,Mt

Fixtrnts,
fiUingsand
equipment

USD

Mobr
Vehides

USD

Total

USD

607,758
52,723

fte33n

t16,798
20923

(42,ffi1

723,956
73,046

t61981)
639,9M 95p77 735,027

t20,807 20923 741,724

99.A50 99A5o
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9. Plont ond equlpmenl (conllnued)
Compony

C6t
Balance at 1 fanuary 2017
Additions

Balance at 31 December 2017

Balance at 1 |anuary2018
Additions
Disposals

Balane at 31 December 2018

Depeciation
Balaneat1fanuary2017
Depeciation ctnrge forthe year

Balance at 31 December 2017

Balaneat1fanuary2018
Depreciation charge forthe year
Disposals

Balane at 31 Deember 2018

Carryingamounts
Atllanrnry20IT
At31 December2017

At1fanuary2018

At31 December2018

8st76)
ffi,323 69S0/' 7W927

Ikbtrcq
fitdngsand
equipment

USD

628,623
30970

(te270)

Mobr
Vehides

USD

95,080

Total

USD

723,703
30970

(M,746)

51t559
50,699

f18,601.|

95ogo

(2sA76)

670,639
50,6W

(M,07n
97,657 69,604 6I7,26t

LL3,064 113,0&

92.666 92,66
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I 0. lnveslrnenh in subsidblbs
Compony

Cost
Balancesat L January
Balancesat3l December

Impairment
Balances at1 fanuary
Impairment/ (rwersal of impairmenQ
Balancesat3l December

Netinvetrnent

The Group and Company have the following invesUnens in subsidiaries:

Nautreof
business

4W10291 47,770,291

COI,(IANY LTD

2018
USD

47:7tO29L

20L7
USD

47,770,291

47ffi9397
408E+

47,676,592
(7,795)

47;710291, 47669,397

40,894

London Forhiting Intemational Limitd

london ForhitingAmericas Inc *

London Forhitingdo Brasil Ltda*

Holding

company
Marketing

Cormtyof
incorporation

GreatBritain

United Statesof

America
Brazil

Issuedordinary
sharecapital

USD 1,OOO

usD250,000

BRL4,045656

Ownershipinercst
20L8 2017
1.0U/o 100o/o

L0@/o 700o/o

1.:0W/o 100o/oMarketing

*A whollyowned subsidiary of London Forhiting Intemational Ltd
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Notes lo lhe finonciol.slqlemenls (conlinued)

ll. Defenedtqxqssels
GroupondCompony

Recognbed defened tox ossels

Defened tax asseb are atftibutable to the following:

Tax rralue of loss carry-fonrnrds
Recognised

Defened tax asset brought forward

Utilised

Remgrition of prwiously unrecogrised tax losses

Balanceat3l December

6,689,n6 7259406 6,@9,n6 7259,406

Group
201:8
USD

Company
2018
USD

2017
USD

20t7
USD

Gronp

20t8
USD

7259./o/6
(570,000)

Company

2018 2017

USD USD

7259fi6 7,25efr6
(570,000) (t,e,M7)

- 1,M4A6L

2017

USD

725eA'06

(71e6,789)

tA96,789

6.:689fr6 7,2594n6 6,68i9fi6 7,259A06

Recognition of the above deferred tax assets is based on management's five year profit forecasts (2077:5 years). It is
based on available evidence, including historical levels of profitability and reasonable assumptions, which indicates
that it is probable that the Company will have future taxable profits against which these assets can be used.

Urrecognbed defened lox ossets

All tax losses have been recognised through the Deferred tax asset of USD 6,689,406 (2017 t IJSD 7 ,259 ,406)

The tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these items because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utilise
the benefits therefrom.

Reductions in the UK corporation tax rate from 20o/o to 79o/o (effective from 1 April2017) was substantively enacted
on 26 October 20L5 and to 77o/o (effective 1 April 2020) was enacted on 15 September 20t6. This will reduce the
company's future current tax charge accordingly and reduce the deferred tax asset at 3L December 2018.
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12. Trode ond olherreceivobles
Group

20ta
USD

403,693
433528

'.776,4L4

2017
USD

398,993
556,826

3,M4,255

Company
201:8
USD

403,683
397,972

1,7N,3M

2017
USD

398993
579,817

3At4,575
2.613.725 4.NO.074 2,#9,999 4,333,325

Amounts due from parent yield no interest. These receivables are unsecured and have no fixed date for repayment;
however are considered repayable on demand.

13. Cosh ond cosh equivolenls
Company

20ta
USD

tffiAt4
19,s27

228,M8 6,367,U9 1:87,9+l 63264n6

All balances have a remaining period to maturity of less than three months.

Bonkoverdrqfi
The overdraft facility, from the parent company, is the equivalent of USD 350 million (2017: USD 350 million). This
facility is made available in USD, GBP, EU& f PY and AED and is unsecured. TheamountofusDT30,2BT,62gwasdrawnon
the hcilityon the 31 December 2078 Q077 :USD 48,875,8n.

14. Oherbonowings
GroupondCompqny

Amounts duefromparent
PrepaymenB and accrued income
O*rerdebbors

Gshatbanks
Cashinhand

Gshatbanlsandinhand

Issuedpromissorynotes
Moneymarketloans
Repos

Otrerborrowinp

Group
201.8
USD

209,536
lg,s32

2017
USD

63M,313
23,536

2017
USD

6,302,875
23,531

2018
USD

72,575,593
ns2729O

20L7
USD

54,653,654

13996,642
65,000,000

113,202,873 733,650,296

Carying
amountof

transfened
liabilities

2014
USD

Carrying
amountof

Fansfened
assets
201:8
USD

Canying
amountof

tansfened
liabilities

2017
USD

Carrying
amountof

t'andened
asseB
2017
USD

Repos 65000,000 72,542,262

The assets transferred under the repurchase agreement are forfaiting assets held for trading with market value of
USD nil (201,7: USD 72,542,262) which have been pledged as collateral under repurchase agreement entered by the
Company. During the year, the Company prepaid the repurchase agreement of USD 65 million.
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15.Shorecopilol

Inthouxndsofshares
0rdinarysharcs
2018 2017

In issue at 1 fanuaryand 31 December - frnV pard 50.000 ,!0,000

At 31 December 2018, the paid share capital comprised of 50,000,000 (2017:40,000,000) ordinary shares of USD 1
each. During the year, the Company paid its sole shareholder a scrip dividend of USD 10,000,000 through the issue of
10,000,000 bonus shares at USD L per share.

16. Trode ond olherpoyobles

AmounBduetoparent
Accnnls and defened income

Group
201:8
USD

15379,1L6
6.O66s29

Company
2018 2017
USD USD

15379,116' 539,828
6,005,861 9,357,687

2017
USD

539,828
9424.r41

2IMS.94S 9963969 21384,977 9897,5L5

Included in accruals and deferred income is USD 0.8m (2017: USD 1.21m) of fees received on trades entered into
where the company has a continued involvement. Continued involvement includes semi-annual reviews in which
additional charges may be incurred and amounts may be repaid. As at 31 December 2018, this is expected to be 1"0

years (20L7: between 7 and B years). The amount represents management's best estimate of the future payables.

Amounts due to parent yield no interest. These payables are unsecured and have no fixed date for repayment.
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I 7. Folr volues cf finonciol insftuments

Fqlvqlues
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm's length transaction on the measurement date.

The carrying amounts of the Group and Company's assets and liabilities, including those at the reporting date
approximate their fair values. The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the
fair values of financial instruments at the reporting date.

The Group measures fair value using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements.

o Level 1: inputs are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.
o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices within Level L that are observable either directly (i.e. prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices
in active markets for similar instruments: quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that
are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data.

r Level 3: inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation
technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect
on the instrument's valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments.

Fofiriling qssels held fclroding
All forfaiting assets held for trading are reported at their fair value at the reporting date.

When available, the Group measure the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that
instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual
and regular occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. However, forfaiting assets are not actively
traded with quoted prices. Accordingly, the Group establishes fair value using a valuation model. On each and every
forfaiting asset held for trading and at the reporting date, management assess the following characteristics

o Counterparty credit worthiness,
o Transaction size,
r Transactioncurrency,
r Transaction type,
o Repayment profile
. Contractual and current interest rates

to discount expected future principal and interest cash flows, with the resulting gain or loss taken to the income
statement. This model is regularly stressed tested and back tested for efficiencies.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This framework
includes reports to the Chief Executive Officer and the Head of Trading who have overall responsibility for veri$ring
the results of trading dnd investment operations and all significant fair value measurements. Significant valuation
issues are reported to the Board of Directors for approval and to the Board Risk Committee of the parent company,
FIMBank plc. for consolidation.

Due to the judgmental nature of the assumptions used, in particular the discount rate, the valuation methodology is
considered level 3 as per IFRS 13 classification.
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17. Foirvolues of finonciolinshrmenls - conlinued

lnteresl rqle frrftrre conlroch
In the case offuture contracts, broker quotes are used. Those quotes are back tested using pricing models or
discounted cash flow techniques. Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are
based on management's best estimates and the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar instrument at the
reporting date. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are based on market related data at the reporting date.

lnleresl roles used for delermining folr volue
The Group and Company use the LIBOR yield curve as of 31 December 2018 plus an adequate credit margin spread
to discount forfaiting assets held for trading. The interest rates used are as follows:

20L8
LSOo/o-12.8o/o

2017
0.54o/o-12.02o/oForhiting asseb held for trading

Where forfaiting assets held for trading are not determined by interest rates, the fair value is derived from a
percentage amount on the outstanding net book value as at the reporting date, which represents management's best
estimate of the recoverable amount.

Reconciliqlion of forfolling qssels held forlroding
The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for fair value of
forfaiting assets held for trading.

Groupqnd Compony
20ta 20t7

USDUSD

Balanceat 1 January
Purchases

Setdemenb
Fair valuation adjustnenB
Movement in accmed interest
Exchange differences

Overduenowsetded
Mahred but not setded duringthe year
Assetwrittenoff
Balanceat3l December

252,509,!M
M,8SO,29S

(343,307A78)
tgst78,9
1fr9,932

(l,7nt82S)
[10291,030)

379,397,9&
474,850,009

(610,208,822)

(s0,021)

131.431

13,632,374

[4,e8?01sJ
120,224

[375,000)f125,860)
347,2U,967 252,509,7M
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Notes lo lhe finqnciql stolements (conlinued)

1 7. Folr volues of finonciol inshumenls - conlinued
Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analyses them by
the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised.

Group Icvell ln.lvel2 Lnvel3 Totalhirvalues

G
COMPAN LTD

USDUSD USD USD

Totalcarrytug
amount

USD201:8
Asseb
Cash and cash equivalents
Tf,ade and other receirables

Liabilities
Bankoverdraft
Otrcrbonowinp
Tlade and other payables

2017
Assets
Cash and cash equivalens
Tlade and other receisables

Liabilities
Bankoverdraft
Odrcrbonowinp
Trade and other payables

Cmpany

2Ar8
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Tlade and olher receirrables

Liabilities
Bankoverdraft
Ofterbonowings
Tfade and other payables

2017
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Thade and other receivables

Liabilities
Bankoverdraft
Ofterborrowingp
Trade and other payables

228,068
2,613,725

228,068
2,613,725

228,068
2,613,725

USD

130287,629
113,202873
21,M5,945

USD USD

130,287629
!13,202,873
2L,M5,945

130,287,629
t13,202,973
21,M5,945

USD USD

6,367,U9
4,400,074

6,367,U9
4400,074

6,367,U9
4,400,074

Ievell

USD

8,875,237
133,650,296

9,963969

lgvelz

USD

48,875,237

133,650,296
9,963969

Ievel3 Totalhirmlues

USD USD

48875,237
133,650,296

9,963969

Totalcarrying
amount

USD

r87frL
2,549,ggg

187,9+t
2,S4ft,ggg

187,94L
2,549,999

130,287,529
113,202,873
2'.3'J4,977

USD USD USD

130,287,629
!13202,W3
2'.384977

USD

130,287,629
113,202,873
21,3U977

USD

6,326406
4,333,325

63264n6
4,333,325

6,326,406
4,333,325

8,875,237
733,650,296

9,897,51.5

48,875,237
133,650,296

9,897515

48,875,237
133,650,296

9,897,575

Where available, the fair value of cash and cash equivalents is based on observable market transactions.
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I 8. Enoncftrl inslrumenls
The Group and Company's business is presently focused on trading in forfaiting assets and comprises the acquisition
and sale/maturity of a variety of commercial papers. In the normal course of business the Company is exposed to the
following risks:

r Market risk
o Liquidity risk
o Credit risk and
r Operational risk

The Group and Company's portfolio of forfaiting assets held for trading comprises bills of exchange, promissory
notes, loans credit default swaps as well as transferable trade related loans that albeit not exchange traded, exist
within an active and well established secondary market. The Group and Company is consequently exposed to various
types of risk that are associated with forfaiting assets held for trading, their funding components, and the
geographical region within which it operates. The most important are market, credit and liquidity risks.

Risk management framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework. The Board in conjunction with the Executive Committee (EXCO) of the parent company,
FIMBank plc, has established risk management policies which are responsible for developing and monitoring of all
risk to the Group.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identiff and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered. The Group,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment, in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. The Group's risk management is
also monitored by the parent company FIMBank plc's Risk Management Committee.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the reporting date and the risk management
policies employed by the Group and Company are discussed below.
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1 8. Finonciol inslrurnents (conlinued)

Moketfsk
Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and comprises price risk, currency risk and interest
rate risk.
The Group and Company's strategy on the management of rish to which it is exposed as a result of its trading
activities, is driven by the Board's objective to grow the size and increase the turnover of its forfaiting portfolio
which necessarily requires an increase in the Group and Company's funding sources.

The Group and Company's market risk is managed on a daily basis. The decision to sell assets prior to or to hold until
maturity depends on the Group and Company's liquidity, profit opportunity and trading alternatives available at the
time. Portfolio management in this respect is the critical process of trading in forfaiting assets. The Group and
Company has a diversified portfolio of forfaiting assets held for trading concentrating in different regions and
different types of counterparties, shown in the tables below.

Mqtkel ftk- ftice tuk
Price risk is the risk that the value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether
caused by factors specific to an individual forfaiting asset, the debtor or all factors [e.g. political or commercial)
affecting the forfaiting assets traded on the market. As against marketable securities, price risk is considered to be a
less relevant variable in relation to forfaiting assets held for trading. Notwithstanding this, the Group and Company
endeavours to mitigate any price risk by building a diversified forfaiting portfolio with an ultimately different
geographical exposure.

As the majority of the Group and Company's financial assets are carried at fair value with changes through the
income statement, any changes in market conditions will directly affect the Group and Company's results.

Fofaiting asseb held for tading

Region

Americas

Asia

Central and Eastem Europe

Middle East & North Africa
RestofEurope
Sub-SaharanAfrica

CounterpartytJDe

Banl<s

Corporates

Sovereign

63251532
il,MS,O#
8,0302L9

Ls262,1M
98,OLO9t4

108,285,!M

2018
USD

20L7
USD

&,745,074
39876,766

2,900,000

678,408

91,036,775

53933,32L
347,2'14967 252,509,\M

20L8
USD

2L3,192,122
83839902
s02s2,943

923218t6..
1r4,182,092

46,005,236

2017
USD

347,2U,967

36
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Notes to the finonciol stolements (conlinued)

1 8. Finqnciol inslrumenh (conlinued)
Moket dsk - Cunency fsk

to hedgeanrrenryexposurethathasasigrificantimpactonitsequity,whidrismainlythroughthemarngingofits multi<urrenryloanfacility.
The Goup and Company's total net exposure in foreign currenry exdunge rates at tre reporting date were as follor,rn;

Group

Asseb
- Forfaiting asseB held for u'ading
- Cash and cash equivalens
- Trade and other recei'uables

TotalAsses

Liabilities
-Bankoverdraft
-Otrerbonowings
- Tnade and other payables

Totalliabilities

Company

Asses
- Forfaiting asseb held for trading
- Cash and cash equivalenb
- Trade and other receirrables

Totalfuses
Liabilities
-Bankoverdmft
- Otrrerborrowings
- Trade and other payables

Totalliabilities

t89268A75 74;751329 q)O,077

- L30287529
- L13202973

16,56 21,M5,945
16,sffi 2&936,M7

274#6,338 74905218 772,354 62850 350,L26,7ffi

USD

272,M72t8
23;7n

2se53BO

92808,598
76p8S,OzL
20374956

USD

272,067218
20^'70

2,357fi7

92808,598
76p8S,OzL
2033Ofr54

Euro
USD

74fi76,t33
8,865

LzO22O

37,038b76
37,Lt7952

594801

Eurc
USD

74576,133
8,B65

tzo22O

37p38fi76
37,tL7852

594,801

2018
Sbrling

USD
54Lsr6
159,606
72lgz

m,355

459:/22

2018
Sbrling

USD

ilL,616
158,606

72,L32

,l4OF55

459:722

Total
USD

3472'J4967
22g,Mg

2,613725

Total
USD

3472B4967
18794L

2,54ft,ggg
3SOp229o7

L3O287529
L132O2873
2'^384977

USD

23L,5U,029
79,327

2,208,077

57,135,063
96,869,449

8,7t7,037

USD

231,582,029

73,820
2,168,336

52135063
96,869,M9

8,672,632

Euro
USD

t9,28t,303

6005,064
2,138,W0

(9805,584)
36,780,U7

499,860

Euro
USD

1928I,303
6005063
2,L38,890

(e90s,s84)
36,780,U7

499,W

20L7
SErfing

USD
1,,&5,8L2

247,523
26,0W

1,645,758

725,O22

2017
Serling

USD

l,&5,812
247,523

26,o99

1,&5,758

725,023

Other
USD

36fi57
25993

Other
USD

233,869433 27A25,257 L?I9A34 62,943 263,277,067

22,050

48,875237
133,650,296

9963,969
22,050 192,4W,502

O(her
USD

35e3s
27,008

Other
USD

Total
USD

252,509,14
6,367&9
4rt00,074

Toal
USD

252,5W,14
6,326N6
4,333325

263,1,68,875

8,875,237
133,650,296

9,897,5t5
192,423.08

1,62,72t,549 27,375,123 2,370,780

274,M5335 74805218 7:72354 233,924,185 27475,256 tgIgA34

189224,073 74;751329 9OO,O77 264875A79 162,677,14 27,375,123 2,370,781.
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Noles lo lhe finqnciol sfqtemenls (conlinued)

I 8. Finonchl inslrurnenls (conlinued)
Mqftet fuk - Cunency ftk (conlinued)
A L0 percent strengthening ofthe US Dollar against the other currencies as at 31 December 2018 would have
increased equity and the profit by USD 2,505 (2077: llSD 32,756 profit). This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 201,7. A t0
percent weakening of the US Dollars would give rise to an equal and opposite effect.

Mqtket rbk - lnterest rqle fsk
The Group and Company are largely funded through equity and short term debt from its parent at rates linked to the
Official ICE LIBOR fixings (LIBOR). The Group and Company are not exposed to changes in the fair value of its
liabilities as a result of changes in interest rates. On the other hand, the forfaiting market very often requires fixed
rate pricing which exposes the Group and Company to the interest rate risk. In this respec! the Group and Company
sells interest rate future contracts dated on or near the maturity dates of the forfaiting assets held for trading when it
commits to acquire fixed rate forfaiting assets held for trading. In the event of a decision to dispose of the forfaiting
asset held for trading and the related future contract before its maturity, the Group and Company have the means to
buy equivalent interest rate futures with a minimum of cost.

The interest rate futures contracts are measured at fair value through the profit or loss. The net fair value adjustment
of the interestrate futures at 31 December 2018 was a loss of USD 27,309 (2077: USD 12,813 profitJ. These amounts
are recognised as fair valuation of derivative financial instruments in Trading Income.

In managing the interest rate rish the Group and Company aims to reduce the impact of short term fluctuations on
the Group and Company's earnings. Notwithstanding the current low LIBOR rate environment, the Group and
Company enter into interest rate futures contracts, to hedge against the risk of changes in the fair value of its trading
assets resulting from changes in interest rates, for its forfaiting assets with an average life of more than twelve
months. The effect of an estimated general increase of one percentage point in interest rate on trading assets with an
average life of more than six months as at 31 December 2018 would reduce the Group and Company's profit before
tax by approximately USD 4t9,987 (20L7: USD 282,068).

Uquidilyrisk
As already stated above under Interest Rate Risk, the Group and Company are funded through equity capital, a multi
currency overdraft facility from the parent with a limit of USD 350 million and external borrowings. In this regard,
the Group and Company's liquidity risks are limited in view of the marketability of the forfaiting assets held for
trading and the availability ofcredit lines from the parent.

The daily liquidity position is monitored and regular liquidity stress testing is conducted under a variety of scenarios
covering both normal and more severe market conditions. All liquidity policies and procedures are subject to review
and approval by LFC's management. Daily reports cover the liquidity position of both the Group and operating
subsidiaries and foreign branches. A summary report, including any exceptions and remedial action taken is
regularly submitted to management.
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I 8. Finonckrl inslruments (conlinued)
LQuldlty tisk (conlinued)

The table below shows the undiscounted cash flows on the Group and Company's financial liabilities, including loan
commitments on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity.

Group

201.8
Bankoverdraft

Odrerbonowinp
Amounb duetoparent
Accruals & defened income

Total

2017
Bankoverdraft
Ofterborrowinp
AmounB dueto parent

Accruals & deferred income

Total

2018
Bankoverdraft
O*rerborrowinp
AmounB duetoparent
Accruals & deferred income
Total

20t7
Bankoverdraft
Otrerborrowings
Amounb dueto parent
Accmals & deferred income

Total

Total
Undiscourred

C,onuachal
Cashflorans

USD

130,602,889
113,7s6,336

Ls,379,1L6

49,073,703
134,886,780

539,828

9,357,687

t3o,602ffig
81,003,308 32,753,028
15,379,LL6

14

32,753p28

2&,936/45 265,805,168 231A29,28,0 33377,t#

Total
USD

130,287,629
113,202873

1s,379,1L6

4,875,237
733,650,296

539,828

130,287529
113,202,873

15,379,116

48,875,237

733,650,296

539,828
9,357,687

Total
Undiscounred

Contractrral
Cashflows

USD

13o,ffiz,ffig
L13,756,336

15379,11:6

49,073,703
734,886,780

539,829

6months
orless

USD

6months
orless

USD

49,013,703
124,612,783

539,828
2,119,560

Gtz
Months

USD

GLz
Months

USD

t0,273,997

2,813,596

130,602,889
81,003308
1.5379,116
4,443967

49,013,703

124,672,783 70,273997

539,829

624,11.8 244298 339,718 414,726
7La

!-2
Years

USD

t-2
Years

USD

2-S

Years
USD

2-S

Years
USD

Over5
Years

USD

985
7 452 \76,302,300 13,137,627 3,327,0& I,097#7

TheamountofusDI30,2B7,629 ontheBankOverdraftisrepayablewithin30days Q0L7:U5D48,875,23n.

Company Total

40
7

USD
2-S

Years
USD

7267ra

3,327,064 1,,097467

T 998 176,285,874 L3,087,593 3,327,064 1,,097A67

TheamountofUSDl30,2B7,629 ontheBankOverdraftisrepayablewithin 30days(2077:USD 48,875,237).
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Efieclive interest rotes ond repicing onotysis - Group

matrue, or if earlier are repriced

zor8 2orz

Overs

'€ars
USD

cowlN

trecftle
inrerest

rab
2-5

lrars

usil)

zv\7n
tw3ffi

42554,flA

Forfiitiryasses
heldforu-ading

-USDftedre

-Eruoft<edrae

-GBPft€drae

-USDfloatingre

-Eruoflo*ingrm

G*rardca*r
equiralenE
{ashatBank

-Cashinhad

USD US|D

Etrecirc
inErest

me
6mmths

orless

62ffiglg
L3fr27M9

74W
3+6382!6

16739939

208535

19533

(e280qss8)

t37,OW676)
(4'm3ss)

Gtz
rnonths

rLs29318
L\n1329

tz4psg

447AtM
23,tMsA

t-2

'rears
USD

L3,EZ7n
7pt65LO

zUAtS
62ffi3,469

6monts
orkss

612
montrs

USD

3929pss

L028p.ltt

65277

nM2pn
r22@

l-2
)'eals

US|D

957L530

543801

4M,195

37p0L267

2-S
years

US|D

3fi36572

334207

43392ffi

Owrs
)tears

USD

Total

US|D

s7,s70fl6

34:756ffi

540,083

L84533i9;7

39ffi321

20q53s

19s33

(e2808ses)

p7CI88;676l

(4ro3ss)

TffiI

US|D

94:/07536

r453sfl6

t&330E
r36,7LU5t

4ffi9A

63&ir3
23536

(sz13sp63)

efls5u
(tf,+s,zsa1

B.03

525

6W
7.47

48B

7.ts

467

3:/6

643

1.00

usil)

812069s1

L65,722

929b30

26A76912

4,797;/33

694313

23536

(sz13sp63)

990558/.

(1645:/s8)

3472U967 127A27342 9\Anl92 e3.2A7173 4557326f 252,5G,1,M L13,476W M,t3Bp24 47,530,793 u363A79

030

22805n 228lJrB 6367&9 6,367tu9
Bankovedraft

-USD

-EUR

.GBP

-AED

+27

xn
2SO

xn

381

0.00

2.75

(L30WS2e) Os0287fi2e)

oherBonowings 3.6 (1132O25t3) (&J,SzTJ:gn pz$71fi6)

Total tmp22533 [83,159,,t06) 58,401"506 &l,207,173 455732ffi

uasTs4n (887snn

zsr (133,6s0,296) (123,4s6,00q $0,194,n7)

76351\60 {52,M,545) 33943733 47530:/93 47363A79
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Efieclive interest rqtes ond repricing onotysis - Compony

matue, or if earlier are rcpriced

20ta 2017
Effecfive
inErcst

rab

403
5.25

&
7.47

488

427
177
2.50

Total

s7,s70926
u;7s6ffi

540,08t
1Ba,$33957

39ffi321

Lgcl3
19,524

1:87ilr

(e280q,seB)

t37,OW0z6)
(4403sS)

6montrs
orhss
USD

6z.51a829
t3A27W

74241'

4,6382ft
16738939

r68-{t3
t9,s28

187fr7

(92,808s98)
(37,038,6761

(4t03ss)

612
rnorfls

USD

LL929318
fi,"41J1329

tvrpsg
4A7g1M
23,t44392

t-2
yeaN
USD

Bp4ne
7,Ot6StO

234#LS

62ffi3,69

()lrcrs

]rears

COMPANYLTD

Eftctive
inbrest

rae

7.r5

467

3:/6

643

1.00

381

0.00

2:/5

Total
USD

94:107536

1453sfi6
LS433W

136;/1U51.

48fp.942

6302875

23531

(52135,063)

990s584
(rtus,758)

6monfts
orhss
USD

8t20695t
L65;122

sn6so
26476812

4n7n3

630287s

2353t

(sz13sp63)

9,90s584

(LS4s;7sB)

Gtz
monts

USD

39npss
t028pA1r

65277

nB42p72
LU@

t-2

"eaxsUSD

957t530
543801

4t+195
37p0t267

N#nrerrrNGLONDO

2-5
yeals
USD

49tgn
1u73ffi

425W1:28

2-5

USDUSD

OwrS
]reals

Forfaitingasses
heldfort"ading
-USDfixedrae
- Eurofixedrate
-GBPfixedrab
-USDfloatngrae
- Eurofloatingrae

Cashandcash

equirzalents

-CashatBank
-Cashinhand

Otrcrbonowings

Total

!€als

35366Z2

334207

43392ffi0

347284967 Ury27y2 E7.gn,t92 A2U7l73 4557326f 2525cB,7M 7L3A76M8 M,739024 U530,793 47,363A79

030

6,326N6 6326N6
Bankoverdraft

USD

zuR
GBP

(L3O287S2el (L3o28752e)

3.# Or32O2873t (ffi527Ja/) (32575ffi)

103982,4$6 f83199,533) 58,,()L506 83207,173 455732ffi

(4887s,23n @BfitS,ZZ4

2s7 (133,6s0,296) (7234s60f6) O0,1e4,n7)

75310,077 (52,52798) 33943,733 47,530:793 47363,479
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Credilrbk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to the financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers and investment
securities.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However,
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default
risk associated with the industry country and region in which customers operate. Details of credit risk concentration
of the forfaiting portfolio are included in page 35.

The risk management committee has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed
individually for creditworthiness before the Group's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are
offered. The Group's review includes external ratings, ifthey are available, financial statements, credit agency
information, industry information, and in some cases bank references. Limits are established for each customer and
reviewed quarterly. Any exposures exceeding those limits require approval from the risk management committee.

ln monitoring customer credit rish customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including
whether they are an individual or a Iegal entity, whether they are a wholesale, retail or end-user customer, their
geographic location, industry, trade history with the Group and existence of previous financial difficulties.

The Group is closely monitoring the economic environment in the emerging market and is taking actions to limit its
exposure to customers in countries experiencing particular economic volatility. ln 2018, countries where payment
delays were experienced due to foreign exchange shortages, limits were reduced.

Whilst the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of the fair value of its assets and off-
balance sheet instruments, the exposure is mitigated through offsetting collateral, credit guarantees and other
actions taken to mitigate the Company's exposure.

Groupond Compony
The aging of Forfaiting assets held for trading at the balance sheet date was

GrossValue
20L8
USD

FairValue
20t8
USD

GrossValue
20t7
USD

FairValue
20L7
USD

Notpastdue
Pastdue [0-30 dap]
Pastdue [31-L20 dap]
Morethan 120 days

Total

356155858 347,208,1M 250,224,98 249170,M7

I,537,257 76863
77,833,924 3,098,677

357,693,115 347,2M,967 262,058,872 252,509,7M

The movement in the fair valuation in respect of forfaiting assets held for trading during the year was as follows

Realised upr,vard hinsaluation
Realised downward hir valuation
Unrealised upward hir valuation
Unrealised dor,vnward hir valuation
Amounb reversed from written offassets

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
USD USD USD USD

6,W#2 463,807 6,Wfi2 463,807
(t6I+693) (ffizn Q',6t+,+55'1 (632n
7907831, 631.,106 7907,83! 63t,106

(2,184,065) (1,138,608) (2,!U,O65) (1,138,608)

!4,3& 14,3U
1;o,L67.9r9 (50.022) to,l68,Is7 (50,022)

In 2018theGroup refinedits hirrraluationmodel ininclude componentsoffeesandcommissionsincomeand expense.

There are no historic forfaiting assets, not carried at fair value wtrich are fi.rlly provided for.
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Operolionoldsks

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Group's
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and
liquidity risks such as those arising from Iegal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of
corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all ofthe Group's operations. Operational risks include Compliance
(KYC) risks, reputational risk amongst others.

Complonce (l{YC) ond Repuffiiond Rbks

Reputational risk is the risk that negative publicity on LFC's business practices, whether true or nof will cause a
decline in the customer base, costly litigation, or revenue reductions. This arises from operational failures, failure to
comply with relevant laws and regulations - especially Anti- Money Laundering ("AMLJ and Anti-Terrorism
Financing ("ATF") regulations - or from other sources, including acts or omissions of misconduct on the part of its
Directors and/or officers and/or representatives overseas, even in matters which are unrelated to their mandate or
position within the Group. The impact to LFC for non-compliance with the applicable regulations can be substantial
and can include formal enforcement actions, monetary penalties, informal enforcement actions, and enhanced
supervisory monitoring.
To this purpose, detailed AML, ATF and fraud documentation policies and procedures, an established Customer
Acceptance Policy as well as a strong oversight by LFC's Board and Management have been devised. LFC uses
research tools to assess the adequacy of prospective clients and transactions including the rating of corporate and
business relationships. Through such procedures, LFC would be able to identiff transactions and clients which pose
a higher risk compared to others. These include Politically Exposed Persons ("PEPs"), clients and transactions
deriving from non-compliant jurisdictions. In addition, reputational risk is also indirectly mitigated through the
setting of Country Limits. Some of the criteria used in setting up a transaction limit for particular countries are
closely related to reputational risk, including issues relating to the political environment such as the fairness and
frequency of election processes and access to power and effectiveness in reforming political systems and
implementing economic agendas.

The Group's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to
the Group's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and
creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is
assigned to senior management within each business unit. This responsibility is supported by the development of
overall Group standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas:

requirements for appropriate segregation ofduties, including the independent authorisation oftransactions;
requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions ;

compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements ;

documentation of controls and procedures ;

requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and
procedures to address the risks identified;
requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action ;

development of contingency plans ;

training and professional development ;

ethical and business standards;
risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective;
periodic reviews undertaken by Internal Audit.

Copilol monogemenl
The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and
to sustain future development ofthe business. Capital consists ofshare capital, general reserve and retained
earnings. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines as profit after tax divided
by capital, represented by the shareholder's equity.

The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. There were no changes in the
Group's approach to capital management during the year.
In 2018, the transition to IFRS9 and IFRS15 has had a USD nil impact on capital.
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19. Operoling leoses

Leosesqs lesee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

lessthanoneyear
Between one and fi ve years

Morethanfiveyear

46,0,L73 69,157 31.8,lM 432,287

During the year, USD 638,016 was recognised as an expense in LFC Group's income statement in respect of operating
leases (2017:USD 594,661). Similarly, USD 500,675 was recognised in the LFC Company's income statement in 2018
in respect ofoperating Ieases [2017:USD 465,531).

20. Commilmenls qnd conlingencies
As part of its normal trade finance activity, the Group has entered into various confirmed credits and commitments,
both of which are contingent upon the fulfilment of documentary conditions on the part of its customers. As at 31
December 2018 these totalled USD 72,061,370 (2017:USD 126,107,003) for both the Group and the Company as
shown in the table below:

Group
20L8
USD

349,et0
11o,343

2017
USD

357,071
372,086

Company
2018
USD

255,030
63,074

2017
USD

262,27L
770,076

Forfaiting asseb held fortading commiftnents
Left er of Credit confi rmations
toan oedit default sr,vaps

Conditional guarantees

Unfu nded credit hcilities

Group
201.8 20L7
USD USD

365L0,87 47,236,123

22L4,529 7,778,L42

2500,000 53,573,829

s2824 94,077

25,683,330 23A24,832
72,06L37O 726,107,003

FinonciqlGuqrqnlees
Financial guarantees are recognised under IFRS 9 and are held at fair value in the balance sheet. The nature ofthese
guarantees means that fair value at inception is usually equal to the premium received. If there is no up-front
payment then the fair value ofthe financial guarantees is recognised at nil on the balance sheet.
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21. Relqted porlies
ldenlilycf reloted porli-.s ond reloled porty bolonces
The Company has a related party relationship with its subsidiaries, parent and other group entities. The results of
these transactions and balances with related parties are disclosed in the various notes to the financial statements
together with the relative terms and conditions where applicable.

The Company has a relationship with Burgan Bank SAK Kuwai! as it has a significant shareholding in the parent
company, FIMBank plc. The Company had a USD 65m repo facility with Burgan Bank SAK Kuwait which has been
fully utilised and repaid during 2018. Further details of this is included in Note 14 Other Borrowings.

The Company has a relationship with Burgan BankA.S, Turkey, as it is a subsidiary of the Burgan Bank SAK Kuwait,
which has a significant shareholding in the parent company, FIMBank plc. The Company had a USD 9.7m forfaiting
asset held for trading which matured during 2018.

The Company has a relationship with Tunis International Bank S.A, Tunisia, as it is a subsidiary of the Burgan Bank
SAK Kuwait, which has a significant shareholding in the parent company, FIMBank plc. The Company has two money
market loans with Tunis International Bank S.A for USD Bm and for USD 3.4m. Further details of this is included in
Note 14 Other Borrowings.

Information on amounts due to/by parent, FIMBank plc and subsidiary companies are set out in notes I0,72 and 76
of these financial statements.

Other than consideration paid for the provision of services under contracts of employment or in their capacity as
directors of the Company (disclosed in Note 5J the Company did not have other related party transactions with key
management.

22. Pqrenl compony ond porerf underloking of lorger group
FIMBank plc by which the Company is directly wholly owned has it registered office situated at:

Mercury Tower
The Exchange Financial & Business Centre
Elia Zammit Street
St. fulian's STJ 3155
Malta

FIMBank plc prepares the financial statements of the Group of which London Forfaiting Company Limited and its
subsidiaries form part. These financial statements are filed and available for public inspection at the Registrar of
Companies in Malta.
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lncome slotemenl - 5 yeor summory
(unoudiled)

Group 2018

USD

2017

USD

2016 2015

USD

20L4

USD USD

Total value of forfaiting asseB

sold/matued during ft e year

Thadingincome

Administrative expenses

Operatingpofitbebrc
provisions & fnancing oosts

g*3,3O7A78 670,208,822 594,7M,960 369,569,6U 353,288,355

29961,636 21,229937 L7436,756 10136,759 t0,346,288

c7ffi2,O37) (6,399,039) (5615,095) (5,637,21n (5,737,650)

22p79,599 14,830,899 11827,667 4,798,942 4,608,638

Movementinpmvisions 665,215

Operating profi t before fi nancing
costs

22p79,599 14,830,898 LL,82L,661 4,798942 5,273,853

NetFinancingo<pense

Profitbeforetax

(6,528271) (0348,030) (6,028,056) (3,993,278) (4,269,650)

8,482,868 5,793,605 805,6& 7,004,203

Incometax (1,405,556) (149,669) 687,726

Profit for the year auributable to
equity holders of the parent

t384s:772 8,333,199 6481.,331 805,@ 7,004,203
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Slolemenls of finonciol posilion - 5 yeor summqry
(unoudited)
Group 2Ol8 2OL7

USD USD

201:6

USD

2015

USD

2014

USD

Assets

Plantandequipment

Defenedtaxasses

Non<rurentasseB

1.12fr74 99450

7259,406

\4I,724

72seAO6

792,W6

6,577,ffi0

L00,7t4

6,577,680

6,g01,ggo 7,358,856 7401,130 6,7&,576 6,672,394

Forfaiting asseB - held for
trading

Gshandcash

Trade and other receivables

Currentassets

Totalassets

u7,2U,967
228,M8

725

252,5W,IM

6,367,M9

379,3979&

l84,625

7,345979

351063,e98

L65,399

1,060,588

262,856,375

tu,873
1,059,688

350,126-760 263,277,067 380,929568 356,2W,985 2&,700,936

Equity

Issuedcapital

Generalreserve

Retainedeaminp

Totat equity attributable to
ownersoftheCompany

356,92qffi 270,635,923 388,329,699 363,054,567 270,773,330

50,000,000 40,000,000 ,1O000,000 ,!0,000,000 40,000,000

41992,193 38,746,421 34261,623 27,780,292 26,974,628

97.,992,t93 78,1MA21 74,261,623 67,780292 66974,628

Lhbilities

hovisions

Non+urrent liabilities

Bankoverdraft

OtherBorrowinp

Tladeand ofterpayables

Currentliabilities

Totalliabilities

Total equity and liabilities

130287,629

1.L3,202,873

ZL,MSg4S

2&936,M7
2&,936147

48.875,237

733,650,296

9963969

217,287,207

86,725,869

10,061,005

208,526,277

76832,308

t65,020,576

31,,78,388

7,029,738

192,89,502 314,068,075 295,274,269

I92,M9,502 314,068,075 295,274,269

203,798,702

203,798,702

356,928,ffi 270,635,923 388,329,698 363,054,56L 270,773,330
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Coshflow slolemenh - 5 yeor summory
(unoudited)

Group 2018

USD

363253178

(433,526,755)

7,052,316

(8,348,495)

t6386,500)

624,47,174

(483501,455)

9,\90,390

(8,285,89n

(s90t923)

608,191,331

(620,339,M9)

7966,840

(8,671923)

[5,493,630)

379,589,607

(&,363,2t7)

3936963

(4,7ee,070)

(s,712989)

2014

36r.,575,437

(351840,939)

6,887,M6

(490sA43)

2017

USD

20L6

USD

2015

USD USD

1l

(17955956) 735,988,289 (18,346831) (9r,348,700) 9,787,180

Cash flor,rn from operating activities
hoceeds from sales/mab.rity of forfaiting
assets

Purchase of forfaiting asseb

Interest and commission receipb

Interest and commission payments

PayrnenB to employees and suppliers

Gshinflow/ outflowbefore changes in
operating asse$ / liabilities

fl ncrease)/decrease in operating asseb

- AmounB due from ultimate parent
- Prepayments, accmed income and other
debtors

Increase/(decreaseJ in operating liabilities

Amount due to ultimate parent

O*rerliabilities
Net cash used in operating activities before
incometax

Incometaxpaid

Netcashused in operatingactivities

(4Set)

11,791t039

1483e288,

t5,119,95n

86,637

(3,TM,732)

L42,502

(793,669)

(3,705,262)

(749,669)

(8,393)

Q769eB)

\2,957

(118s4

74,972

2,699

41,626

(60,7L3)

72949

(775,Mn

(7,790zes)

!1506;779

(2278s71
Q73,r55) 2,887,&0 (r927,47n

(ffi,677,034) 732,733,358 (t8,679986) (88A67,060) 7,859,763

Net cash ftom investing activities (6s;73L) Q0,79n (9,273) (742,03s) (38/80)

Cash flour from financing activities

hoceeds from iszued prom notes

Repaymentofprom notes

O*rer financing agreements entered

Repayment of fi nancing agreemenB entercd

Repayment Repo Financing

Net movement in bank overdraft

DMdendsPaid

Net cash used in financing aaivities

L27,n8G6
(109,815,691)

83;754,065

(s7,1s628)
(65,000,000)

81412392

76,14358t

Q9,715,795'-)

!3,996,&2

(13,500,000)

31.,08L,579

(48,502,465)

42500,000

(20,185553)

70,230,339

(ss,782,780)

707,470,503

(77,374,L42)

58A02,L23

(83,300833)

59658,813

(49,267,707)

(768A05,ee) 8,754924 43,505,70L 7,646,029

6OSO29m (725,929,%n 18,ffiA85 88,589,62r V,861,069)

Net (decreaseJ/ increase in cash and cash

equfualenb

Gshand cash equivalenb atbeginningofyear

Cash and cash equftnlents at end ofyear

(6,L39,791)

6,367,U9

6,183,224

L8/.,625

19,226

165,399

(teA74)

78/.,873

(39,786)

224,659

228,,068
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Board of Directors
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E m ai I : lfc@forfaitingcom
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Tel: +1 2727597919
Email : Ih@forfaitine.mm
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04578-903,Brazil
Tel: +55 7t3443-7440
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Tel: +33 6t08367 84
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3 Smolenskaya Square,
Moscow 121099,
Russian Federation
Tel:7 49577L7t42
E m a i I : lfcrussia@forhitingcom
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50667,
Germany
Tel: +49 221920 42223
Ema il : lfcgermany@forhitingcom

Mollo Singopore
Mercury Tower,
The Exchange Financial & Building Centre,
Elia Zammit Street
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Malta
Tel: +356 23280 736
E m ai I : Ifcmalta(Dforhitingcom

10 Changi Business Park Central 2
#05-01 HansaPoint @CBP
Singapore 486030
Email: lfcsingapore@forhitingcom
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